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| MELINDA HAAG (CABN 132612)

United States Attorney

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
| NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA )
" | | " OAKLAND DIVISION 55

€R 12 si2
VIQLATIONS: 26 US.C, § 7201 - Tax
Evasion; 18 U.S.C. § 371 — Conspiracy;

18 U.S.C, § 2511 — Unlawful Interception of
Commumnications

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
I Plaintiff,

MARY NOLAN,

OAKLAND VENUE
Defendant, .

Wd Jury Charges: ' '
! | INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS

At all times relevant to this Indictment:

1. Defendant MARY NOLAN was an attorney licensed in California and
specializing in the practice of family and divorce law. |

2. NOLAN was also the owner and operator of The Law Offices of Mary Nolan,
located in San Ramon, California. |
fit
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COUNT ONE: (26 U.5.C. § 7201 — Tax Evasion)

3. Onorabout October 16,2006, in the Northern District of California, the
defendant, | |

MARY NOLAN,

then a resident of Castro Valley, California, did wiltfully attempt to evade and defeat a large part
of the income tax dus and owing by ber to the United States of America for the calendar year
2005, by preparing and causing to be prepared, and by signing and causing to be signed, a false
and frandulent V.S, Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, which was filed with the Internal
Revenue Service, In that false income tax return, she stated that her taxable itcome for the
calendar year was -$21,395, and that the amount of 1ax due and owing thereon was $9,310: In
fact, as she then knew, her taxable income for the calendar year was approximately $306,543,
and the amount of tax cmﬁng 1o the United States of America was approximaté!y $08.658.

All in viotation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7201.

COUNT TWO: (26 U.S.C. § 7201 — Tax Evasion) .

4. On orabout October 4, 2007, in the Northern District of California, the defendant,

MARY NOLAN, |

then a resident of Castro Valley, California, did willfully attempi to evade and defeat a large part
of the income tax due and nwihg by her to the United States of America for the calendar year
2006, by preparing and causing to be prepared, and by signing and causing to be signed, a false
and fraudulent U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, which was filed with the Internal
Revenue Service. In that false income tax return, she stated that ber taxable income for the
calendar year was -$12,472, and that the amount of tax due and owing thereon was $10,882. In
fact, as she then knew, her taxable income for the calendar year was approximately $410,581,
and the amount of income tax owing to the United States of America was approximately
$144,126. ' '

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7201.
i '
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CQUNT THREE: (26 U.8.C. § 7201 — Tax Evasion)

5. On or about October 13, 2008, in the Northem Dlstrlct of California, the

defendant,
MARY NOLAN,

then a resident of Castro Valley, California, did willfully attempt to evade and defeat a large part
of the income tax duc and owiﬁg by he 1o the United States of Americafor the calendar year
2007, by preparing and causing to be prepared, and by signing and causing to be signed, a false
and fraudulent U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040, which was filed with the Tnternal
Revene Service. In that false income tax return, she stated that her taxable i income forthe -~
calendar year was -$53,934, and that the amount of tax due and owing thereon was $4,583, In
fact, as she then knew, her taxable income for the calendar year was approximately $574,769,
and the amount of income tax owing to the United States of America was approximately
$190,039. .

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7201,

COUNT FOUR: (26 U.S.C. § 7201 ~ Tax Evasion)

6. Onorabont October 12, 2009, in the Northern District of California, the

defendant, '
MARY NOLAN,

then a resident of Oaklaﬁd, California, did willfully attempt to evade and defeat 2 large part of
the income tax due and owing by her to the United States of America for the calendar year 2008,
by preparing and causing to be prepared, and by signing and cansing to be signed, a false and
fraudulent U.S. Indw:dual Income Tax Retum, Form 1040, which was filed with the Internal
Revenue Service, In that false income tax retumn, she stated that her taxable income for the
calendar year was -$48,146, and thet the amount of tax due and owing thereon was $6,032. In
fact, as she then knew, her taxable income for the calendar year was approxlmately $414 319,
and the amount of income tax owing to the United States of America was appmmmately
$131,900.

INDICTMENT ' © 3
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Ail in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7201.

COUNT FIVE: (18 U.S.C. § 371 — Conspiracy to Uniawdully Tntercept Communications)
7. Beginning on a date unknown but no later than on or about August 9, 2007, and

‘continuing through at Jeast on or about September 9, 2007, in the Northern District of California

and elsewhere, the defendant,
MARY NOLAN, :
and others did lmﬁwingly and willfully conspire to unlawfiully interoept wire, oral, and electronic
communications, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 251 1(1)(a)
MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

8. NOLAN referred clients to the private investigation firm Butler & Associates in
Concord, California, owned and operated by Christopher Butler, so that Butler could install
concealed listening devices in the clients” spouses’ and Qignjﬁcgnt others’ cars, NOLAN
intended to use the recorded telephone conversations 10 assist her clients’ legal proceedings.

9. Tohavea listeniﬁg'dﬁvice instailed, NOLAN’s client brought Butler the target-
vehicle. Butler created a listening device by disabling the ringer and speaker of a cellular phone,
leaving the micropbone active, and sethng the phone to automatically connect atl i mcom:ng

hone calls. Butler then concealed the device in the target vehicle.

. 10 After Butler installed the listening devices, he provided the device ph:me number
to the client and/or NOLAN. The device was éctivated when NOLAN ot another listener called
the phone number. The phone silently connected the call and allowed the listener to hear any
sounds within the vicinity of the phone. B
| 11.  On numerous occasions, NOLAN and her staff, acting on NOLAN's instructions,
called the phone numbers for the listening devices to eavesdrop on conversations by NOLAN’s
clients’ spouses and significant others.

QVERT AC

12.  Infurtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the objects of that conspiracy, in the

Northera District of California and elsewhere, NOLAN and others committed the folfowing overt

INDICTMENT . 4
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acts, among others: _

a. Onor about Angust 8, 2007, S.F. met with Butler to dlscuss installing a |
concealed listening device in the car used by her husband, N.F.

b._ On or about August 9, 2007, S.F. signed a client services agreement with
Butlcr"s firm, Builer & Associates.

C. On or ahout August 9, 2007 Butler nstalled a concealed hstenmg dewce
in the car used by N.F.

| 4 On or about September 9, 2007, Butler renewed service for the listening
device in N.F.’s car, |
All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

COUNT SIX: (18 US.C. § 2511(1)(a) and (4)(a) - Unlawful Interception of Communications) |

13.  Beginning on or about August 9, 2007, and continuing through at least on or about -
September 9, 2007, in the Northern District of California, the defendant,

' 'MARY NOLAN,

did knowmgly and intentionally i mtercept, endeavor to intercept, and procure another person to
intercept and endeavor to intercept, a wire, oral, and ¢lectronic communication, specifically
communications in N.F.’s car, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 251 1(E)(a)
apd (4Xa).
DATED: September (o, 2012 ATRUE BILL.

. ' 1
MELINDA HAAG

d

MIRANDA K| s
Chief, Crimin#l Division

{Approved as to form:

INDICIMENT 5
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DEFENDANT INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A GRIMINAL ACTION - IN U.S. DISTRICT COURT

gv: 3 comreant [ incORMATION INDICTMENT
O surersening

OFFENSE CHARGED
26154, 6§ 7201 —Tax Bvaslon [ Petty
18USC 5371 » Conepiracy
18US5.C.5 251 1(1)(a) & (4)a) — Unlawful Interception of (] vanor
Communications : .
mearnor
B Feiony

PENALTY: 26USC §7201~ Sy, imprisorment; $100,000 fine; 3 yrs.
supervised release; 5100 special assessment

18USC 85371 & 251 1(3)(a) ~ 5 yrs: Imprisanment; $250,000 fing;
3 yrs. supervised relezse; S100 spacial assastiment
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